
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
October 4, 2012, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 6, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of the Minutes of the September 27, 2012 Special Board Meeting 
 
C. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
D. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
  (1) Letters (2) dated September 5, 2012 from SDRMA re No Paid Workers 


Compensation or Property/Liability Claims in FY 2011-12 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Saddle Failures 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Engineering Services for CIP 2014 (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Res. 12-16, Resolution of Intention to Approve an 


Amendment to Contract Between the Board of Administration of CalPERS and 
the Board of Directions of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (Est. time 15 
min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Crystal Communications lease (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Renewal of Redwood Credit Union Certificate of Deposit 


(Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Progress Report of the Ad Hoc Goals and Objectives 


Formatting Committee  
 Members: Sukey Robb-Wilder, Victoria Wikle (Est. time 10 min.)  
 
G. Discussion/Action re District’s Participation in Disaster Preparedness Exercises 


(Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9. 
 Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros. et al. 
 
B. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6   
 District Negotiator: Legal Counsel 
 Unrepresented Employee: General Manager. 
 
C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
 


 2







 3


D.  Conference with Real Party Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.7 
Property at 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville, CA 
Agency Negotiator: General Manager 
Negotiating Parties: AT&T 


 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
September 6, 2012 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Gaylord Schaap  
 Richard Holmer 
 Jim Quigley 
   
Board Members Absent: (None.) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Tim Lipinski 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Sukey Robb-Wilder at 6:32 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 


p.m.) 
 
The GM pulled Item V-F (re Claim 2012-04).  There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder requested that Item G (Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives) of 
the Minutes of the July 5 Board Meeting be amended as follows: 
 


No action was taken, The President appointed a Committee of herself and Victoria Wikle to redo the 
Goals and Objectives to be more user-friendly, acknowledge when things are done, and to be easier to 
maintain.  but tThis item was calendared for discussion . . .  


 
The Minutes were amended.  Discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent 
Calendar items as amended.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The following items 
were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 2, 2012 Board Meeting 
 


 1







B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Compensation for Board members.  The GM 


provided a brief overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Public comment was made 
by Tim Lipinski.  Further discussion ensued and additional comments were made by Tim 
Lipinski.  No action was taken.   


 
B. (6:49 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Crystal Communications Lease.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  No action was taken.  


C. (6:52 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista Terrace saddle failures.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


D. (6:53 p.m.) Discussion/Action re November 4, 2012 Election.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Public comment was 
made by Tim Lipinski.  Further discussion ensued.  A Special Meeting was set for 
September 27 at 6:30 p.m. for interested people to come and speak to the Board 
regarding the open Board seat available in December 2012.   


 
E. (7:03 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Progress Report of the Ad Hoc Formatting 


Committee (Goals & Objectives document) 
 Members: Sukey Robb-Wilder, Victoria Wikle 
 Director Wikle and Director Robb-Wilder provided a status report.  Discussion ensued.  


No action was taken.  


F. (7:03 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Claim No. 2012-4, Karen Wilde, 17343 Park Ave., 
Guerneville (Damages from Tree Hitting Car). This item was pulled from the Agenda 
earlier in the meeting.  


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:07 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Russian River Flow at Hacienda 
5. 2013 CIP 
6. USDA Financing 
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. Monte Rio System Facilities Tour 
10. Gantt Chart 
 
 


 2







VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(7:21 p.m.) 


 
Director Wikle announced that the Russian River Steelhead Society would be putting on a Fly 
Fishing Day on September 30 from 11 a.m. – 1 p.m. at the Sportsmens Club in Duncans Mills. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:21 p.m.) 
 
At 7:23 p.m. President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  The 
Board went into Closed Session at 7:24 p.m.  At 8:15 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 
 
 B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 


of Section 54956.9. 
  Name of case: John Bruce Berry, et al. v. F. Korbel & Bros. et al. 
  No action was taken. 


 
B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation 


pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
  Direction was given to staff.  No action was taken. 
 
 C. Conference with Real Party Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property at 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville, CA 
  Agency Negotiator: General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: AT&T 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 


D, Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator 
District Negotiator: Legal Counsel 
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment 
Direction was given to Legal Counsel. 
 


 E. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54957 


  Title: General Manager 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:17 p.m.) 
 
1. Minutes 
2. Notice of Intent re CalPERS contract 
3. Engineering services for CIP 2014 
4. Goals Committee 
5. USDA Loan 
6. Emergency Services 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


 3







 4


 
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:07 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(7:21 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:21 p.m.)

		B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:17 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
September 27, 2012 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Rich Holmer 
 Jim Quigley 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
   
Others in Attendance:     Tim Lipinski 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Sukey Robb-Wilder at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:31 p.m.) 


A. (6:31 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Appointment recommendations for the Board 
Director seat vacant as of December 2012 


 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Tim Lipinski introduced himself and made a 
statement to the Board.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Quigley made a motion to 
recommend Tim Lipinski to the County Board of Supervisors for the Board Director seat 
open as of December 2012.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


 
 


 1







 2


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:48 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Steve Mack 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Rich Holmer:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
 
 





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:31 p.m.)

		ADJOURN















SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 4, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE FAILURES 
RESOLUTION  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
W.R. Forde replaced 18 saddles during the week of July 30.  All saddles associated with 
this project have been replaced in an acceptable manner.  As reported at the October 
meeting the only outstanding issue is payment for the investigation done June 20-22 
($18,700).  Since the October meeting I have submitted information to W.R.Forde and 
Travelers Insurance, the project surety, to document this expense.  This submittal has 
been acknowledged by the surety and elicited an email response from W.R. Forde staff 
and we have exchanged views over the phone.  I am hopeful that we will reach 
agreement on payment of this expense shortly and will report on the progress at the 
Board meeting.     
 
 





		Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2014 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and provide direction on the scope of engineering 
services for the 2014 CIP.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has an aggressive Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with a priority aim of 
reducing system water losses.  The CIP has had substantial assistance from the 
Redevelopment program but that is no longer available to assist with future projects, so 
we will need to use reserves, funds developed through water rate revenues or find other 
funding assistance sources.    We have had a substantial number of projects every year 
since 2008.     
 
It is time to start design of the FY 2014 CIP (Table 1) so we need to settle on the 
projects for FY 2014 and to select a design consultant to do the design and later provide 
construction management and inspection services during construction next summer.    
In June we revised the CIP with the intent of just doing the Old Monte Rio Road element 
based on the belief that the 2014 CIP would be fully funded by the District.  This 
summer we have been in discussions with United States Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) regarding getting financing with loan forgiveness for funding our CIP.   Since the 
USDA only funds one year’s work at a time, staff started consideration of adding to the 
approved 2014 CIP by including the Hidden Valley Road project to the workplan to be 
funded by USDA.   
 
Some Considerations: 
 
USDA Funding.  We have made our pre-application for USDA funding based on doing 
the Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road projects as the 2014 CIP.  This funding 
request has been sent into a USDA higher authority (I’m not familiar with the USDA 
hierarchy) and I’ve been told we will be approved or accepted to submit a full 
application.   If funding is approved after a full application, we will receive receipt of the 
funds in about five months, although I believe we will learn of our acceptance well 







2014 CIP  2  
October 4, 2012 


before that time.  This funding can be used for project related expenses incurred prior to 
receipt of funds, for example, the District could be repaid for design costs incurred prior 
to receipt.   
 
The amount of loan forgiveness, if any, is not known at this time.  When I started the 
process, I was told that 45% loan forgiveness was possible.  Now I am hearing that 
25% loan forgiveness is possibly the best we can hope for and there is no guarantee of 
that.  We will learn the amount of loan forgiveness, if any, prior to accepting the loan.   
 
Initially we inquired into USDA loans with the interest of refinancing existing USDA debt.  
We learned that refinancing is not possible, but we can acquire new debt and pay off old 
– essentially refinancing.  The last USDA loan rate I heard was 2.65% and our first 
USDA bond has a 5% rate.  Paying off the 5% debt and replacing it with 2.65% debt 
may look favorable, but one must realize we would be replacing bonds with a 20 year 
life with bonds with a 40 year life.  The annual cash flow difference is approximately 
$20,000, but we are adding 20 years to the life of the debt.  If we can get 25% loan 
forgiveness, the annual cash flow difference rises to $40,000; that may be a worthwhile 
exchange.  We could also not pay off existing debt and realize an increase in annual debt 
payments.   
 
2014 CIP.  The Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley Road projects are both needed 
projects for the District.  The initial, sitting at the computer look appeared to show that 
these two projects could be done next year during the construction season.  Field 
investigations of the Old Monte Rio Road element demonstrated that this project may be 
fairly complicated with difficult service connections and relocations involved.  It is 
certainly possible that this element may cost substantially more than the $936,000  
initially estimated when it was first scoped out in 2002.  It may be prudent to limit next 
year’s construction to just the Old Monte Rio Road element because of the anticipated 
construction difficulties.  However, we won’t know important information to inform this 
decision until the design is well underway.  The Hidden Valley Road element will also 
have some complicated parts to it, specifically culvert crossings and the tank/pump 
interactions (should the pump be relocated, is the tank the correct size?) and also could 
be more expensive than the 2002 cost estimate.  Design of this element this winter 
would not be wasted or go stale.  If we don’t construct it in FY 2014, we intend to do it 
in 2015.   
 
Design Services.  The past two years’ CIP projects have been designed and 
construction management and inspections done by Coastland Engineers.  We have had 
preliminary discussions and site visits with Coastland staff and have asked them to 
prepare a proposal for doing the work for both Old Monte Rio Road and Hidden Valley 
Road with the understanding that Hidden Valley Road may be put on hold for one year, 
or may not be included in this year’s contract.  A proposal will not be available for the 
October 4 meeting.  Approval of a contract with Coastland would not happen until the 
November 1 meeting.  At the October meeting we can talk about the scope of the 
contract – should we include design of the Hidden Valley Project in this contract?  







2014 CIP  3  
October 4, 2012 


 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2014 CIP   


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Comments 
2014       


  


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of 
existing main and appurtenances commencing at 
the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly. 50 services 


$936,000  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks  


  Additional Possible Project: 


  


  


  


Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of 
existing main and appurtenances on Hidden 
Valley Rd.  67 services $656,000  


Needed for flows, fire 
protection, customer 
water quality, leaks; 
need to figure out 
project 


Total 
2014   $1,592,000    


 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 12-16, 
RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION OF CALPERS AND THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTIONS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 12-16 which is a resolution of 
intention to approve an amendment to the contract between CalPERS and 
Sweetwater Springs Water District to add the provision of partial service 
retirement to the District’s retirement program with CalPERS. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
In discussions on my future employment with the District I have requested that the 
Board consider partial service retirement as an element of that future employment.  
Partial service retirement means that an employee can work less than full time, for 
example 70%, and collect the employee’s CalPERS retirement benefit for the remainder 
of the 100%, in this example, 30% of the retirement benefit.  To implement this 
provision the District needs to modify its contract with CalPERS.  CalPERS (and State 
law) requires specific steps be followed to modify agency contracts.  The first step is 
passage of a resolution of intention to modify the contract which is Resolution 12-16, 
which is attached.  This resolution must be passed prior to approval of the resolution 
approving the actual modification.  As well as this resolution, the District must forward 
to CalPERS certification of the governing body’s action and certification of compliance 
with Government Code Section 7507.   
 
Government Code Section 7507 requires that the future annual costs or benefit change 
of the proposed contract be made public at a public meeting at least two weeks prior to 
the adoption of the final resolution.  This particular contract modification does not have 
any cost, per se, to the District.  There will be no change in the employer or employee 
cost percentage because of this modification.  If implemented for specific employees, 
there will be cost savings to the District depending on the specific employee costs and 
amount of partial retirement.  In the example stated above with 70% of full time, if the 
District and General Manager were to take advantage of this contract modification with 







Resolution 12-16 CalPERS Partial Retirement  2  
October 4, 2012 


respect to the General Manager position at 70% of full time, the annual savings to the 
District would be approximately $46,000  through salary and retirement benefits cost 
reductions (based on the 2012 budget information) .   
 
If the Board approves Resolution 12-16, staff will return in November with the final 
resolution which will implement the contract modification.   

















































		Item V-C - Res 12-16 CalPers Partial Retirement

		Item V-C.1 - PERS Partial Retirement docouments






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 4, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE CRYSTAL COMMUNICATIONS LEASE 
FOR DISTRICT MOUNT JACKSON PROPERTY 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update from the General Manager on the 
resolution of nonpayment issues with Crystal Communications lease for District Mount 
Jackson property.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
We have a general resolution on this item (reported on at the last two 
meetings).  The issue now is the details of a letter agreement documenting our 
points of agreement.   When I last talked with Michelle Rodriguez of Crystal 
Communications, the radios were in, the base station was coming, and the 
agreement was being reviewed by their attorney.  I will try to get more 
information prior to the Board meeting. 





		Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RENEWAL OF REDWOOD CREDIT UNION 
CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and give staff direction on renewal of the 
Redwood Credit Union Certificate of Deposit (CD). 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  small, as discussed below.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
We have been informed by the Redwood Credit Union that the CD we have with them is 
up for renewal on October 5, 2012.  As of June 30, 2012 the value of the District’s CD 
was $664,620.62 (we get quarterly reports).  The interest rate of this CD has been 5% 
annually.  The renewal rate is 1.25%.   
 
The District purchased the CD five years ago because of the superior interest compared 
to the interest that was being received from the County pooled investment program.  
Currently the County rate of return is approximately 0.87% annually.   
 
Security of District reserves is the overriding concern of our investment strategy.  My 
understanding is that the security of the Redwood Credit Union CD was discussed when 
it was first purchased.  Credit union funds are explicitly insured up to $250,000 for 
special districts.  At the time of purchase, the District was assured by the then auditor 
(Michael Celentano) that the entire amount was insured, but we have not been able to 
find documentation of the insurance above $250,000.  So it appears that approximately 
$414,000 of the CD has uncertain insurance supporting it.   
 
If the County pooled investments continue to achieve a 0.8% annual return, the income 
difference between $414,000 at 0.8% and 1.25% is approximately $1,800 per year.  
County pooled investments are backed by the County which is considerable assurance 
but not a guarantee either.  For example, Orange County has defaulted twice on its 
investments in my professional experience and agencies that put their investments in 
the Orange County investment fund lost a portion of their invested funds (however, the 
Orange County investment strategy was much riskier than that of Sonoma County).  







Redwood Credit Union CD  2  
October 4, 2012 


Staff believe that the Sonoma County pooled investment program is a more secure 
place for District Reserves than uninsured amounts with a credit union. 
 
There are other considerations: The County pooled investment program has a variable 
rate of return based on how the investments are doing.  It could go up or down.  The 
Redwood Credit Union rate is fixed for the term of the purchase which has been five 
years in the past.  Also, a CD is much less flexible than investments with the County.  
The funds are locked into the CD for the term of the investment.  The principal can be 
retrieved at any time but the interest earned is lost.  County funds can be retrieved at 
any time with no interest penalty.   
 
If the District is to remain with having a CD with Redwood Credit Union, staff 
recommends renewing at $235,000 for five years which will allow the funds to grow 
during the five-year period to the fully insured amount of $250,000.    Done this way, 
the CD will earn approximately an average of $3,000 per year.  The same funds left 
with Sonoma County pooled investment program with an average rate of return of 
0.8% (currently it is 0.87%) would earn approximately an average of $1,900 per year.  
 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Sukey Robb-Wilder, President 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROGRESS REPORT OF THE AD HOC GOALS 
AND OBJECTIVES FORMATTING COMMITTEE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update from the ad hoc Committee on Goals and 
Objectives. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder and Victoria Wikle are reviewing the District Goals and Objectives. 
The document was first drafted in 2007 and has been reviewed annually since then.   We 
think the document in its present form has served its purpose as a tool to organize board 
thinking and needs to be changed to reflect the District’s progress and current status.  
We will be recommending changing the structure and streamlining the content.   
 
While we have not yet finished our review, as we go over the current document in detail, 
we are finding that major goals are largely acknowledged in the District’s Mission 
statement which is on the website.  We are also finding that some of the priorities and 
tasks detailed in the Goals document have been addressed and accomplished.  For 
instance, the task to develop a financial plan (Goal 1, Priority 1) has been completed and 
the financial plan is being considered as part of the annual budgeting process.  Other 
priorities and tasks are more ongoing in nature and may need to be looked at annually.  
For instance, disaster preparedness and emergency planning (Goal 3, Priority 1).  Some 
of the more ongoing priorities and tasks may be better addressed as part of the annual 
planning in the District’s Calendar Gannt Chart. 
 
As we continue our review, we want to talk over specific ideas with staff and bring the 
results of our conversations in a proposal back to the board for discussion and action. 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 4, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT PARTICIPATION IN DISASTER 
PREPAREDNESS EXERCISES 


RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss District participation in regional disaster 
preparedness exercises.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the last meeting there were some questions about District participation in 
disaster preparedness exercises.  This was not an agendized item and thus 
questions could not be fully asked or answered.  This will be an opportunity for 
Board Members to discuss this item.   





		Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-H  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 4, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RIO VISTA TERRACE SADDLE 
FAILURES RESOLUTION  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on progress resolving the Rio Vista 
Terrace service connection saddle failures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
W.R. Forde replaced 18 saddles during the week of July 30.  All saddles 
associated with this project have been replaced in an acceptable manner.  As 
reported at the October meeting the only outstanding issue is payment for the 
investigation done June 20-22 ($18,700).  Since the October meeting I have 
submitted information to W.R.Forde and Travelers Insurance, the project surety, 
to document this expense.  This submittal has been acknowledged by the surety 
and elicited an email response from W.R. Forde staff and we have exchanged 
views over the phone.  I am hopeful that we will reach agreement on payment 
of this expense shortly and will report on the progress at the Board meeting.     
 
 





		Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 4, 2012  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in August were 29,829 units 


(68.5 AF, Monte Rio cycle) and production was 94.4 AF.  Compared to one 
year ago, sales and production this August were higher (59.9 AF and 86.7 
AF, respectively).  I’m wondering if the increases this summer reflect 
increased summer activity – it seems busier this summer.   The annual 
average difference between sales and production decreased slightly 
compared to the prior month, 26.3%.    Figure 1 shows the 12 month 
moving averages since September 2006, data are available back to May 
2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  In August we had 24 total leaks and spent 70 man-hours on them.   


Those are more leaks but fewer man-hours compared to the prior month 
and less for both compared to August one year ago (28 leaks, 120 man-
hours).  Figure 2 is continued showing service and main leaks separately 
with a total breaks line as well.   The annual average is staying below the 
200 per year mark and the 12 month average of service leaks continues to 
be more than main leaks numbers.       


 
4. Russian River Flow at Hacienda:  Russian River flow at Hacienda is shown 


in Figure 3.   The past three months flow has stayed near or above 100 cfs 
and continues to look more like last year than that 2009 drought year even 
though yearly precipitation was closer to 2009 amounts.     


 
5. 2013 CIP:  Construction of the 2013 CIP has had a late start – the Lovers 


Lane element started on July 27.  The water-related aspects of this element 
was completed on Thursday, September 27; and mainline replacement is 
approximately half completed on the Canyon Seven Road element of the 
project.     


 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 5 
October 4, 2012 


 


6. USDA Financing:  This is discussed more fully in the agenda item on the 
2014 CIP. 


 
7. Monte Rio Recreation and Park District (MRR&P) Wonderland Trail:  


This was originally on the agenda for discussion with MRR&P representatives 
but they were not quite prepared for this meeting.  The Creekside Park phase 
I element is underway and MRR&P has received additional funding for the 
overall project. The recent funding will be used to fully build out the park 
improvements for Phase I including completing the 1/3 of a mile loop trail and 
installing the community garden/farm.  They would like to be on the November 
agenda to discuss the use of District land for the Wonderland Trail element of 
the overall project.   


 
8. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   The Direct Install program has 


been popular.  So far in September we have had 17 applications approved 
(29 total) and the program has nearly exhausted the available funding 
through this fiscal year.            


 
9. In-House Construction Projects:  There were 4 in-house projects reported 


for September requiring 18.25 man-hours.  The largest project was 
reinforcing the fence at the Rio Nido Tank.   Other projects included a service 
upgrade on Mesa Grande Terrace, fence repairs from last summer’s CIP on 
Eastern Avenue, and replacing a valve box on Rio Nido Road.    


 
10.  Gantt Chart:   October in the Gantt Chart shows 2013 CIP construction 


nearing completion.  It’s going slower than that; more like one third 
completed.  Also, the Gantt Chart shows we should be starting on design of 
the 2014 CIP and that is discussed in Agenda Item B.     


 
 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 5 
October 4, 2012 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Jan-
07


May-
07


Sep-
07


Jan-
08


May-
08


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks
Total Leaks


 


 







General Manager’s Report  4 of 5 
October 4, 2012 


 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2012 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated September 27, 2012


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n


19
-Ju


n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l


7-A
ug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug
4-S


ep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep
2-O


ct


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2011


2012


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 FY 14+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2013-14 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


•        2013 CIP Award of Contract


•        2013 CIP Construction Starts


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


2010 Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and 
Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: October 4, 2012 



